


Introduction
The buildings of Mount Dora provide a tangible 

record of the history and development of our 

community. From the modest Vernacular dwell-

ings that were home to the average Mount Doran, 

to large hotels that catered to winter visitors, to 

downtown commercial buildings where genera-

tions of residents went shopping – each in its own 

way provides a view of daily life in Mount Dora in 

earlier times. 

The architectural styles of the buildings – from 

simple to elaborate – reflect the tastes and aspira-

tions of the people of Mount Dora. The materials 

and craftsmanship in the structures reveal the 

environment of Central Florida and the skills of 

builders from years gone by. The historic neigh-

borhoods, where concentrations of older buildings 

remain, provide important architectural diversity 

and a sense of place in our growing community. 

These old buildings and streetscapes are treasures 

to be enjoyed, cherished and protected, for they 

add to the beauty and value of our community.

Many of these treasures have already been lost. 

Long time residents can still recall the grand ho-

tels, when downtown was the only place to shop 

and when the high-tech street surfacing was pine 

straw.

This brochure provides a brief outline of the his-

tory of Mount Dora. More information about the 

history of Mount Dora can be found in Memories 

of Mount Dora and Lake County: 1845 – 1981 by 

David Edgerton, The Story of Mount Dora Florida 

by R.J. Longstreet and Mount Dora: The Rest of the 

Story, Plus! by Dr. R. Eugene Burley.

Mount Dora was originally surveyed from 1846-1849, 

it was noted that the Drawdy family was living two 

miles south of what is now Lake Dora. One version of 

the history states that Dora Drawdy, wife of William 

and mother of their several children, hospitably shared 

the family’s meager supplies with the government 

surveyors. In gratitude, they named the large lake 

to the north in her honor. In August 1874 the first 

homesteader, David M. Simpson, moved into what is 

now Mount Dora. As of 1879, there were five families 

recorded as living in the area.

The original name given to the town when the Post 

Office was established in August 1880 was Royellou, 

an acronym made from the names of early settler and 

first Postmaster Ross Tremain’s three children – Roy, Ella 

and Louis. Sometime in 1882 or 1883 the name was 

changed to Mount Dora.

A plat of the town was recorded on September 1, 1884. 

It is known that J.P. Donnelly and John A. McDonald 

were heavily involved in this endeavor. They, along 

with Col. John Alexander, were the first developers in 

the City. 

Prior to 1886, access to the area was limited. Self-

reliant residents raised their own livestock, grew 

vegetables from kitchen gardens and supplemented 

their diet with the abundant fish and game found 

in the immediate vicinity. Cloth, tools and many 

building supplies were brought overland in 

wagons or made the circuitous water route from 

Sanford. 

A CHRONOLOGIAL HISTORY  
OF MOUNT DORA
1845	 Florida is admitted to the Union

1850s	 William and Dora Ann Drawdy settle two miles south 
of what is now Lake Dora

1874	 David Simpson family is first to homestead in what is 
now Mount Dora

1875	 Mr. and Mrs. Wm. Stone homestead 160 acres which 
include what is now downtown Mount Dora

1879 	 Mr. and Mrs. Stone divorce and he returns north

1879	 John P. Donnelly comes to this area and homesteads 
160 acres north of Mrs. Stone’s property

1880	 First Post Office established with Ross C. Tremain as 
Postmaster. The town is named ROYELLOU after his 
three children, Roy, Ella and Louis. 

1881	 John P. Donnelly and Ms. Annie Stone are married

1883	 Name of town is changed to Mount Dora

1883	 First portion of Lakeside Inn is built, known as Alexan-
der House

1886	 First newspaper, “Mount Dora Voice,” is published 

1887	 First railroad came to Mount Dora

1893 	 Donnelly House is built

1908	 Ms. Donnelly dies

1910 	 Town is incorporated, J.P. Donnelly is elected first 
mayor

1914	 First streets are paved

1923 	 First firehouse (present Royellou museum) is built on 
land owned by Mr. Donnelly

1924	 Mr. Donnelly sells Donnelly Park property to the City 
and the park is named for Ms. Donnelly

1929	 Mr. Donnelly buys Guller House and sells it to the city 
for use as City Hall

1929	 Community Building built

1930 	 J.P. Donnelly dies 

CRAFTSMAN BUNGALOW 
During the first three decades of the twenti-

eth century, the Bungalow became the most 

common style of residential architecture in the 

United States. 

Florida Bungalows appeared in several forms. 

The more elaborate of them were one-and-one-

half stories in height and highly detailed. 

Most displayed gently sloping gable-over-gable 

roofs that face the street. Bungalows employed 

a variety of exterior materials. Rafter ends were 

usually exposed and often 

carved in decorative patterns 

to combine structure and 

ornament.

MEDITERRANEAN INFLUENCE
Florida’s Spanish heritage and semi-tropical climate 

favored use of Mediterranean designs. The roots 

of Mediterranean-influenced architecture in Florida 

can be traced to the Spanish, Italian Renaissance, 

and Moorish Revival churches and hotels in St. 

Augustine developed by Henry Flagler and others 

during the 1880s.

FRAME VERNACULAR 
Frame Vernacular architecture was the common 

wood-frame construction of self-taught builders, 

often passed from one generation to the next. 

Vernacular building traditions resulted from the 

builder’s experience, available resources, and 

responses to the local environment.

Historic Overview

Superimposed upon the Stone homestead 
of 182 acres is an 1884 plat of the proposed 
town of Mount Dora. 

This illustration was found in both the Story of Mount Dora, Florida 
by RF Longstreet and Memories of Mount Dora by David Edgerton.

For information on how you can get a map like this 
made for your community, contact: 

 

O’Ryan Creative Marketing Services, Inc.
Maps@oryancreative.com

P.O. Box 1334 
Mount Dora, FL 32756

352-735-0962

Looking North on Donnelly Street, c.1880

East Side of Donnelly between 4th and 5th c.1920

Milner-Rosenwald Academy built in 1926

However, Mount Dora 

was by no means 

“uncivilized.” In the 

spring of 1886, the local 

newspaper, the Mount 

Dora Voice, noted that the 

fledgling community boasted 

two general stores, one 

drugstore, a carriage factory, 

three hotels and two churches. 

The first train arrived in 1887 on 

the Sanford and Eustis Railroad, 

and the first direct steamboat 

connection began in the summer of the same year.

Overall, Mount Dora grew very slowly in these early 

years. Potentially, the citrus industry could have led 

to significant growth. However, devastating back-to-

back freezes in 1894-95 had an enormous impact as 

the unusually intemperate weather destroyed both 

the young groves and the economic dreams of many 

settlers. The U.S. Census for 1890 records indicates 

there were 174 people living in the 

Mount Dora precinct. 

By 1900, the number had 

grown only to 197. The 

oldest Sanborn Map was 

produced in 1906. It 

shows at that time, what 

is now the downtown 

area, there were five 

commercial buildings, 

the Post Office, the 

depot and the town hall. 

Only a portion of one of these eight 

buildings remains.

The City of Mount Dora was incorporated on March 

25, 1910. At this time there were 371 people living in 

the City proper and 42 in the surrounding precinct. The 

community had no paved streets, no water system, no 

streetlights and no sidewalks.

From 1919 to 1925, Mount Dora experienced the same 

building boom as did the rest of the State of Florida. The 

little community began to transform from an isolated 

country town into a City. 

While the boom still rolled on, the town began 

to invest in its public infrastructure by installing 

streetlights, constructing a water system and paving 

roads.

The building boom in Florida collapsed between 

1925 and 1926, which created hard times for all 

municipalities. 

Witherspoon Lodge  

1470 North Clayton St

One of the oldest African 

American Masonic 

Lodges in Florida, the 

Witherspoon Lodge was 

founded in Mount Dora 

in 1898.  It followed the 

tradition of Price Hall (1735-

1807), a noted African American of colonial Boston 

and opponent of slavery and racial oppression.  The 

Lodge members purchased the Witherspoon building 

in 1903, and meet there to this day.  In the Masonic 

tradition of mutual aid and community service, they 

have offered the building for use as a public school 

during segregation in the 1920s, a church sanctuary, a 

youth library, and a community center.  In 2001, the site 

was recognized as a Florida landmark and awarded a 

State of Florida Historic Heritage Marker.  In 2009, 

it was Listed on the National Register of 

Historic Places.

Witherspoon Lodge: students who attended classes on first floor 

Witherspoon Lodge Present Day

Milner – Rosenwald Academy 

1560 North Highland Street 

When the original school for Mount Dora’s African-

American children burned in 1922, Mamie Lee 

Gilbert and Lula Butler spearheaded the drive for 

a new school.   Seed money was obtained from 

the Rosenwald Foundation, founded in 1913 by 

philanthropist Julius Rosenwald, to support rural 

black school construction in the South.  Matching 

funds came from Rev. Duncan Milner, a resident 

of Mount Dora concerned with racial injustice.  

Completed in 1926, the school provided an 

education for children until 1962.  Since then the 

building has been a branch library, youth center, 

and currently houses the Head Start program.  

In 2004, the site was recognized as a Florida 

landmark and awarded a State of Florida 

Historic Heritage Marker. 

Mount Dora, Florida


